

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

BID OPPORTUNITY

BID OPPORTUNITY NO. 557-2017

MAINTENANCE OF PETROLEUM HANDLING SYSTEMS FOR WINNIPEG FLEET MANAGEMENT AGENCY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART A - BID SUBMISSION	
Form A: Bid Form B: Prices	
PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES	
 B1. Contract Title B2. Submission Deadline B3. Site Investigation B4. Enquiries B5. Confidentiality B6. Addenda B7. Substitutes B8. Bid Submission B9. Bid B10. Prices B11. Disclosure B12. Qualification B13. Opening of Bids and Release of Information B14. Irrevocable Bid B15. Withdrawal of Bids B16. Evaluation of Bids B17. Award of Contract 	
PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS	
C0. General Conditions	
PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS	
GeneralD1.General ConditionsD2.Scope of WorkD3.DefinitionsD4.Contract AdministratorD5.Contractor's SupervisorD6.Ownership of Information, Confidentiality and Non DisclosureD7.Notices	
Submissions D8. Authority to Carry on Business D9. Insurance	
Control of Work D10. Commencement D11. Liquidated Damages D12. Prime Contractor – The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba) D13. The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba) – Qualifications D14. Safety D15. Site Cleaning D16. Inspection D17. Orders D18. Records	
Measurement and Payment D19. Invoices	
D20. Payment	
Warranty D21. Warranty	

PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

General

E1.	Applicable Specifications and Drawings	1
E2.	Services	1
E3.	Existing Services	4
E4.	Contract Method	5
E5.	Work By Others	5
E6.	Work Sequence	5
E7.	Contractor Use of Premises	5
E8.	City Occupancy	5
E9.	Documents Required	6

PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES

B1. CONTRACT TITLE

B1.1 MAINTENANCE OF PETROLEUM HANDLING SYSTEMS FOR WINNIPEG FLEET MANAGEMENT AGENCY

B2. SUBMISSION DEADLINE

- B2.1 The Submission Deadline is 4:00 p.m. Winnipeg time, July 27, 2017.
- B2.2 Bids determined by the Manager of Materials to have been received later than the Submission Deadline will not be accepted and will be returned upon request.
- B2.3 The Contract Administrator or the Manager of Materials may extend the Submission Deadline by issuing an addendum at any time prior to the time and date specified in B2.1.

B3. SITE INVESTIGATION

- B3.1 Further to C3.1, the Bidder may make an appointment to view the Site by contacting the Contract Administrator.
- B3.2 The Bidder is advised that a Fuel Site Binder containing current and past fuel site reference material for much of the petroleum handling equipment will be available at the Site for viewing by the Bidder.
- B3.3 The Bidder shall not be entitled to rely on any information or interpretation received at the Site investigation unless that information or interpretation is the Bidder's direct observation, or is provided by the Contract Administrator in writing.
- B3.4 The Bidder is responsible for determining:
 - (a) the location of any utility which can be determined from the records or other information available at the offices of any public authority or person, including a municipal corporation and any board or commission thereof, having jurisdiction or control over the utility;
 - (b) the nature of the surface and subsurface conditions at the Site;
 - (c) the location, nature, quality or quantity of the materials to be removed or to be employed in the performance of the Work;
 - (d) the nature, quality or quantity of the Plant needed to perform the Work;
 - (e) all matters concerning access to the Site, power supplies, location of existing services, utilities or materials necessary for the completion of the Work; and
 - (f) all other matters which could in any way affect his/her Bid or the performance of the Work.

B4. ENQUIRIES

- B4.1 All enquiries shall be directed to the Contract Administrator identified in D4.1.
- B4.2 If the Bidder finds errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Opportunity, or is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Bidder shall promptly notify the Contract Administrator of the error, discrepancy or omission at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B4.3 If the Bidder is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Bidder should request clarification as to the meaning or intent prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B4.4 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, require a correction to or a clarification of the Bid Opportunity will be provided by the Contract Administrator to all Bidders by issuing an addendum.

- B4.5 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, do not require a correction to or a clarification of the Bid Opportunity will be provided by the Contract Administrator only to the Bidder who made the enquiry.
- B4.6 The Bidder shall not be entitled to rely on any response or interpretation received pursuant to B4 unless that response or interpretation is provided by the Contract Administrator in writing.

B5. CONFIDENTIALITY

- B5.1 Information provided to a Bidder by the City or acquired by a Bidder by way of further enquiries or through investigation is confidential. Such information shall not be used or disclosed in any way without the prior written authorization of the Contract Administrator. The use and disclosure of the confidential information shall not apply to information which:
 - (a) was known to the Bidder before receipt hereof; or
 - (b) becomes publicly known other than through the Bidder; or
 - (c) is disclosed pursuant to the requirements of a governmental authority or judicial order.
- B5.2 The Bidder shall not make any statement of fact or opinion regarding any aspect of the Bid Opportunity to the media or any member of the public without the prior written authorization of the Contract Administrator.

B6. ADDENDA

- B6.1 The Contract Administrator may, at any time prior to the Submission Deadline, issue addenda correcting errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Bid Opportunity, or clarifying the meaning or intent of any provision therein.
- B6.2 The Contract Administrator will issue each addendum at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, or provide at least two (2) Business Days by extending the Submission Deadline.
- B6.2.1 Addenda will be available on the Bid Opportunities page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at <u>http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/bidopp.asp</u>
- B6.2.2 The Bidder is responsible for ensuring that he/she has received all addenda and is advised to check the Materials Management Division website for addenda regularly and shortly before the Submission Deadline, as may be amended by addendum.
- B6.3 The Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in Paragraph 8 of Form A: Bid. Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may render a Bid non-responsive.

B7. SUBSTITUTES

- B7.1 The Work is based on the Plant, Materials and methods specified in the Bid Opportunity.
- B7.2 Substitutions shall not be allowed unless application has been made to and prior approval has been granted by the Contract Administrator in writing.
- B7.3 Requests for approval of a substitute will not be considered unless received in writing by the Contract Administrator at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B7.4 The Bidder shall ensure that any and all requests for approval of a substitute:
 - (a) provide sufficient information and details to enable the Contract Administrator to determine the acceptability of the Plant, Material or method as either an approved equal or alternative;
 - (b) identify any and all changes required in the applicable Work, and all changes to any other Work, which would become necessary to accommodate the substitute;

- (c) identify any anticipated cost or time savings that may be associated with the substitute;
- (d) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved equal, the substitute will fully perform the functions called for by the general design, be of equal or superior substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the Contract;
- (e) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved alternative, the substitute will adequately perform the functions called for by the general design, be similar in substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the Contract.
- B7.5 The Contract Administrator, after assessing the request for approval of a substitute, may in his/her sole discretion grant approval for the use of a substitute as an "approved equal" or as an "approved alternative", or may refuse to grant approval of the substitute.
- B7.6 The Contract Administrator will provide a response in writing, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, to the Bidder who requested approval of the substitute.
- B7.6.1 The Contract Administrator will issue an Addendum, disclosing the approved materials, equipment, methods and products to all potential Bidders. The Bidder requesting and obtaining the approval of a substitute shall be responsible for disseminating information regarding the approval to any person or persons he/she wishes to inform.
- B7.7 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved equal", any Bidder may use the approved equal in place of the specified item.
- B7.8 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved alternative", any Bidder bidding that approved alternative may base his/her Total Bid Price upon the specified item but may also indicate an alternative price based upon the approved alternative. Such alternatives will be evaluated in accordance with B16.
- B7.9 No later claim by the Contractor for an addition to the Total Bid Price because of any other changes in the Work necessitated by the use of an approved equal or an approved alternative will be considered.
- B7.10 Notwithstanding B7.2 to B7.9, and in accordance with B8.5, deviations inconsistent with the Bid Opportunity document shall be evaluated in accordance with B16.1(a).

B8. BID SUBMISSION

- B8.1 The Bid shall consist of the following components:
 - (a) Form A: Bid;
 - (b) Form B: Prices;
- B8.2 Further to B8.1, the Bidder should include the written correspondence from the Contract Administrator approving a substitute in accordance with B7.
- B8.3 All components of the Bid shall be fully completed or provided, and submitted by the Bidder no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely.
- B8.4 Bidders are advised not to include any information/literature except as requested in accordance with B8.1.
- B8.5 Bidders are advised that inclusion of terms and conditions inconsistent with the Bid Opportunity document, including the General Conditions, will be evaluated in accordance with B16.1(a).
- B8.6 The Bid may be submitted by mail, courier or personal delivery, or by facsimile transmission.

B8.7 If the Bid is submitted by mail, courier or personal delivery, it shall be enclosed and sealed in an envelope clearly marked with the Bid Opportunity number and the Bidder's name and address, and shall be submitted to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance Department Materials Management Division 185 King Street, Main Floor Winnipeg MB R3B 1J1

- B8.7.1 Samples or other components of the Bid which cannot reasonably be enclosed in the envelope may be packaged separately, but shall be clearly marked with the Bid Opportunity number, the Bidder's name and address, and an indication that the contents are part of the Bidder's Bid Submission.
- B8.8 If the Bid is submitted by facsimile transmission, it shall be submitted to 204 949-1178
- B8.8.1 The Bidder is advised that the City cannot take responsibility for the availability of the facsimile machine at any time.
- B8.9 Bids submitted by internet electronic mail (e-mail) will not be accepted.

B9. BID

- B9.1 The Bidder shall complete Form A: Bid, making all required entries.
- B9.2 Paragraph 2 of Form A: Bid shall be completed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his/her own name, his/her name shall be inserted;
 - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, the full name of the partnership shall be inserted;
 - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, the full name of the corporation shall be inserted;
 - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his/her own, the business name and the name of every partner or corporation who is the owner of such business name shall be inserted.
- B9.2.1 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, each and all such persons shall identify themselves in accordance with B9.2.
- B9.3 In Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid, the Bidder shall identify a contact person who is authorized to represent the Bidder for purposes of the Bid.
- B9.4 Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid shall be signed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his/her own name, it shall be signed by the Bidder;
 - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, it shall be signed by the partner or partners who have authority to sign for the partnership;
 - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, it shall be signed by its duly authorized officer or officers and the corporate seal, if the corporation has one, should be affixed;
 - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his/her own, it shall be signed by the registered owner of the business name, or by the registered owner's authorized officials if the owner is a partnership or a corporation.
- B9.4.1 The name and official capacity of all individuals signing Form A: Bid should be printed below such signatures.
- B9.5 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, the word "Bidder" shall mean each and all such persons, and the undertakings, covenants and obligations of such joint Bidders in the Bid and the Contract, when awarded, shall be both joint and several.

B10. PRICES

- B10.1 The Bidder shall state a price in Canadian funds for each item of the Work identified on Form B: Prices.
- B10.1.1 Notwithstanding C11.1.3, prices on Form B: Prices shall not include the Goods and Services Tax (GST) or Manitoba Retail Sales Tax (MRST, also known as PST), which shall be extra where applicable.
- B10.2 The quantities listed on Form B: Prices are to be considered approximate only. The City will use said quantities for the purpose of comparing Bids.
- B10.3 The quantities for which payment will be made to the Contractor are to be determined by the Work actually performed and completed by the Contractor, to be measured as specified in the applicable Specifications.
- B10.4 Payments to Non-Resident Contractors are subject to Non-Resident Withholding Tax pursuant to the Income Tax Act (Canada).

B11. DISCLOSURE

- B11.1 Various Persons provided information or services with respect to this Work. In the City's opinion, this relationship or association does not create a conflict of interest because of this full disclosure. Where applicable, additional material available as a result of contact with these Persons is listed below.
- B11.2 The Persons are:
 - (a) N/A

B12. QUALIFICATION

- B12.1 The Bidder shall:
 - (a) undertake to be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Bidder does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Bidder does carry on business; and
 - (b) be financially capable of carrying out the terms of the Contract; and
 - (c) have all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to perform the Work in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract.
- B12.2 The Bidder and any proposed Subcontractor (for the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
 - (a) be responsible and not be suspended, debarred or in default of any obligations to the City. A list of suspended or debarred individuals and companies is available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at <u>http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/debar.stm</u>
- B12.3 The Bidder and/or any proposed Subcontractor (for the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
 - (a) have successfully carried out work similar in nature, scope and value to the Work; and
 - (b) be fully capable of performing the Work required to be in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract; and
 - (c) have a written workplace safety and health program, if required, pursuant to The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba);

- (d) be a Licensed Petroleum Contractor and have a valid Technician's License issued by Manitoba Conservation for Construction/Alteration of Petroleum Storage and Handling Systems and must be available on-site;
- (e) Possess CSA Standard B139, Installation Code for Oil-Burning Equipment
- B12.4 Further to B12.3(c), the Bidder shall, within five (5) Business Days of a request by the Contract Administrator, provide proof satisfactory to the Contract Administrator that the Bidder/Subcontractor has a workplace safety and health program meeting the requirements of The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba), by providing:
 - (a) Written confirmation of a safety and health certification meeting SAFE Work Manitoba's SAFE Work Certified Standard (e.g., COR[™] and SECOR[™]) or
 - a copy of their valid Manitoba COR certificate and Letter of Good Standing (or Manitoba equivalency) as issued under the Certificate of Recognition (COR)
 Program administered by the Construction Safety Association of Manitoba or by the Manitoba Heavy Construction Association's WORKSAFELY[™] COR[™] Program; or
 - a copy of their valid Manitoba SECOR[™] certificate and Letter of Good Standing (or Manitoba equivalency) as issued under the Small Employer Certificate of Recognition Program (SECOR[™]) administered by the Construction Safety Association of Manitoba or by the Manitoba Heavy Construction Association's WORKSAFELY[™] COR[™] Program or
 - (b) a report or letter to that effect from an independent reviewer acceptable to the City. (A list of acceptable reviewers and the review template are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at <u>http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/</u>.
- B12.5 The Bidder shall submit, within three (3) Business Days of a request by the Contract Administrator, proof satisfactory to the Contract Administrator of the qualifications of the Bidder and of any proposed Subcontractor.
- B12.6 The Bidder shall provide, on the request of the Contract Administrator, full access to any of the Bidder's equipment and facilities to confirm, to the Contract Administrator's satisfaction, that the Bidder's equipment and facilities are adequate to perform the Work.

B13. OPENING OF BIDS AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION

- B13.1 Bids will not be opened publicly.
- B13.2 Following the Submission Deadline, the names of the Bidders and their bid prices (unevaluated, and pending review and verification of conformance with requirements) will be available on the Closed Bid Opportunities (or Public/Posted Opening & Award Results) page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/
- B13.3 After award of Contract, the name(s) of the successful Bidder(s) and the Contract amount(s) will be available on the Closed Bid Opportunities (or Public/Posted Opening & Award Results) page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/
- B13.4 The Bidder is advised that any information contained in any Bid may be released if required by The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), by other authorities having jurisdiction, or by law or by City policy or procedures (which may include access by members of City Council).

B14. IRREVOCABLE BID

B14.1 The Bid(s) submitted by the Bidder shall be irrevocable for the time period specified in Paragraph 9 of Form A: Bid.

B14.2 The acceptance by the City of any Bid shall not release the Bids of the next two lowest evaluated responsive Bidders and these Bidders shall be bound by their Bids on such Work for the time period specified in Paragraph 9 of Form A: Bid.

B15. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

- B15.1 A Bidder may withdraw his/her Bid without penalty by giving written notice to the Manager of Materials at any time prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B15.1.1 Notwithstanding C22.5, the time and date of receipt of any notice withdrawing a Bid shall be the time and date of receipt as determined by the Manager of Materials.
- B15.1.2 The City will assume that any one of the contact persons named in Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid or the Bidder's authorized representatives named in Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid, and only such person, has authority to give notice of withdrawal.
- B15.1.3 If a Bidder gives notice of withdrawal prior to the Submission Deadline, the Manager of Materials will:
 - (a) retain the Bid until after the Submission Deadline has elapsed;
 - (b) open the Bid to identify the contact person named in Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid and the Bidder's authorized representatives named in Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid; and
 - (c) if the notice has been given by any one of the persons specified in B15.1.3(b), declare the Bid withdrawn.
- B15.2 A Bidder who withdraws his/her Bid after the Submission Deadline but before his/her Bid has been released or has lapsed as provided for in B14.2 shall be liable for such damages as are imposed upon the Bidder by law and subject to such sanctions as the Chief Administrative Officer considers appropriate in the circumstances. The City, in such event, shall be entitled to all rights and remedies available to it at law.

B16. EVALUATION OF BIDS

- B16.1 Award of the Contract shall be based on the following bid evaluation criteria:
 - (a) compliance by the Bidder with the requirements of the Bid Opportunity, or acceptable deviation therefrom (pass/fail);
 - (b) qualifications of the Bidder and the Subcontractors, if any, pursuant to B12 (pass/fail);
 - (c) Total Bid Price;
 - (d) economic analysis of any approved alternative pursuant to B7;
- B16.2 Further to B16.1(a), the Award Authority may reject a Bid as being non-responsive if the Bid is incomplete, obscure or conditional, or contains additions, deletions, alterations or other irregularities. The Award Authority may reject all or any part of any Bid, or waive technical requirements or minor informalities or irregularities if the interests of the City so require.
- B16.3 Further to B16.1(b), the Award Authority shall reject any Bid submitted by a Bidder who does not demonstrate, in his/her Bid or in other information required to be submitted, that he/she is responsible and qualified.
- B16.4 Further to B16.1(c), the Total Bid Price shall be the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item shown on Form B: Prices.
- B16.4.1 Further to B16.1(a), in the event that a unit price is not provided on Form B: Prices, the City will determine the unit price by dividing the Amount (extended price) by the approximate quantity, for the purposes of evaluation and payment.
- B16.5 This Contract will be awarded as a whole.

B17. AWARD OF CONTRACT

- B17.1 The City will give notice of the award of the Contract or will give notice that no award will be made.
- B17.2 The City will have no obligation to award a Contract to a Bidder, even though one or all of the Bidders are determined to be responsible and qualified, and the Bids are determined to be responsive.
- B17.2.1 Without limiting the generality of B17.2, the City will have no obligation to award a Contract where:
 - (a) the prices exceed the available City funds for the Work;
 - (b) the prices are materially in excess of the prices received for similar work in the past;
 - (c) the prices are materially in excess of the City's cost to perform the Work, or a significant portion thereof, with its own forces;
 - (d) only one Bid is received; or
 - (e) in the judgment of the Award Authority, the interests of the City would best be served by not awarding a Contract.
- B17.3 Where an award of Contract is made by the City, the award shall be made to the responsible and qualified Bidder submitting the lowest evaluated responsive Bid in accordance with B16.
- B17.3.1 Following the award of contract, a Bidder will be provided with information related to the evaluation of his/her Bid upon written request to the Contract Administrator.
- B17.4 Notwithstanding C4.1, the City may issue a purchase order to the successful Bidder in lieu of the execution of a Contract.
- B17.5 The Contract Documents, as defined in C1.1(n)(ii), in their entirety shall be deemed to be incorporated in and to form a part of the purchase order notwithstanding that they are not necessarily attached to or accompany said purchase order.

PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS

C0. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- C0.1 The *General Conditions for Supply of Services* (Revision 2007 04 12) are applicable to the Work of the Contract.
- C0.1.1 The General Conditions for Supply of Services are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/gen_cond.stm
- C0.2 A reference in the Bid Opportunity to a section, clause or subclause with the prefix "**C**" designates a section, clause or subclause in the *General Conditions for Supply of Services*.

PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS

GENERAL

D1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

D1.1 In addition to the *General Conditions for Supply of Services*, these Supplemental Conditions are applicable to the Work of the Contract.

D2. SCOPE OF WORK

- D2.1 The Work to be done under the Contract shall consist of the regular maintenance of diesel fuel and gasoline storage and dispensing systems for seven (7) Winnipeg Fleet Management Agency Fueling Sites from date of award until December 31, 2018 with the option of four (4) mutually agreed upon one (1) year extensions.
- D2.1.1 The City may negotiate the extension option with the Contractor within ninety (90) Calendar Days prior to the expiry date of the Contract. The City shall incur no liability to the Contractor as a result of such negotiations.
- D2.1.2 Changes resulting from such negotiations shall become effective on January 1st of the respective year. Changes to the Contract shall not be implemented by the Contractor without written approval by the Contract Administrator.
- D2.2 The major components of the Work are as follows:
 - (a) In addition to the regular maintenance of the fuel sites the Contractor will be responsible for Annual Inspection and Performance testing as required by the CCME Code of Practice, Section 8.4.1(4) all that apply
- D2.3 Including but not limited to the following locations:
 - (a) 1220 Pacific Avenue
 - (b) 2546 McPhillips Street
 - (c) 552 Plinguet Street
 - (d) 598 Plinguet Street
 - (e) 1539 Waverley Street
 - (f) 735 Assiniboine Park Drive
 - (g) 3 Grey Street
- D2.4 The Work shall be done on an "as required" basis during the term of the Contract.
- D2.4.1 The type and quantity of Work to be performed under this Contract shall be as authorized from time to time by the Contract Administrator and/or Users.
- D2.4.2 Notwithstanding C7.4, the City shall have no obligation under the Contract to purchase any quantity of any item in excess of its actual operational requirements.

D3. DEFINITIONS

- D3.1 When used in this Bid Opportunity:
 - (a) "**User**" means a person, department or other administrative unit of the City authorized by the Contract Administrator to order Work under this Contract;

D4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

D4.1 The Contract Administrator is:

Alanna Van Buren Senior Clerk - Fuel and Rentals Winnipeg Fleet Management Agency

Telephone No.204 986-8370Email Address:lvanburen@winnipeg.ca

D4.2 At the pre-commencement meeting, the Contract Administrator will identify additional personnel representing the Contract Administrator and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Work.

D5. CONTRACTOR'S SUPERVISOR

- D5.1 Further to C6.19, the Contractor shall employ and keep on the Work, at all times during the performance of the Work, a competent supervisor and assistants, if necessary, acceptable to the Contract Administrator. The supervisor shall represent the Contractor on the Site. The supervisor shall not be replaced without the prior consent of the Contract Administrator unless the supervisor proves to be unsatisfactory to the Contractor and ceases to be in his/her employ.
- D5.2 Before commencement of Work, the Contractor shall identify his/her designated supervisor and any additional personnel representing the Contractor and their respective roles and responsibilities for the Work.
- D5.2.1 Further to C5.5 Contract Administrator may give instructions or orders to the Contractor's supervisor and such instructions or orders shall be deemed to have been given to the Contractor.

D6. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION, CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON DISCLOSURE

- D6.1 The Contract, all deliverables produced or developed, and information provided to or acquired by the Contractor are the property of the City and shall not be appropriated for the Contractors own use, or for the use of any third party.
- D6.2 The Contractor shall not make any public announcements or press releases regarding the Contract, without the prior written authorization of the Contract Administrator.
- D6.3 The following shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by the Contractor to the media or any member of the public without the prior written authorization of the Contract Administrator;
 - (a) information provided to the Contractor by the City or acquired by the Contractor during the course of the Work;
 - (b) the Contract, all deliverables produced or developed; and
 - (c) any statement of fact or opinion regarding any aspect of the Contract.
- D6.4 A Contractor who violates any provision of D6 may be determined to be in breach of Contract.

D7. NOTICES

D7.1 Notwithstanding C22.3, all notices of appeal to the Chief Administrative Officer shall be sent to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer at the following facsimile number:

The City of Winnipeg Chief Financial Officer Facsimile No.: 204 949-1174

D7.2 Bid Submissions must not be submitted to this facsimile number. Bids must be submitted in accordance with B8.

SUBMISSIONS

D8. AUTHORITY TO CARRY ON BUSINESS

D8.1 The Contractor shall be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Contractor does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Contractor does carry on business, throughout the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contract Administrator with evidence thereof upon request.

D9. INSURANCE

- D9.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain the following insurance coverage:
 - (a) commercial general liability insurance, in the amount of at least five million dollars (\$5,000,000.00) inclusive, with The City of Winnipeg added as an additional insured; such liability policy to also contain a cross-liability clause, contractual liability, non-owned automobile liability, sudden and accidental pollution liability and products and completed operations cover, to remain in place at all times during the performance of the Work and throughout the warranty period;
 - (b) Automobile Liability Insurance covering all motor vehicles, owned and operated and used or to be used by the Contractor directly or indirectly in the performance of the Service. The Limit of Liability shall not be less than \$2,000,000 inclusive for loss or damage including personal injuries and death resulting from any one accident or occurrence;
 - (c) contractor's pollution liability (CPL) insurance in the amount of at least two million dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence and four million dollars (\$4,000,000) aggregate insuring against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work performed by the Contractor. Coverage to include: (i) destruction and loss of use of tangible property (ii) diminution in value; (iii) natural resource damages (iv) clean-up costs; (v) defence including costs, charges and expenses.
- D9.2 Deductibles shall be borne by the Contractor.
- D9.3 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a certificate(s) of insurance, in a form satisfactory to the City Solicitor, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the commencement of any Work on the Site but in no event later than seven (7) Calendar Days from notification of the award of Contract.
- D9.4 The Contractor shall not cancel, materially alter, or cause the policy to lapse without providing at least thirty (30) Calendar Days prior written notice to the Contract Administrator.
- D9.5 The City shall have the right to alter the limits and/or coverages as reasonably required from time to time during the continuance of this agreement.
- D9.6 All policies must be taken out with insurers licensed to carry on business in the Province of Manitoba.

CONTROL OF WORK

D10. COMMENCEMENT

- D10.1 The Contractor shall not commence any Work until he/she is in receipt of a notice of award from the City authorizing the commencement of the Work.
- D10.2 The Contractor shall not commence any Work on the Site until:
 - (a) the Contract Administrator has confirmed receipt and approval of:

- (i) evidence of authority to carry on business specified in D8;
- (ii) evidence of the workers compensation coverage specified in C6.14; and
- (iii) evidence of the insurance specified in D9.
- (b) the Contractor has attended a meeting with the Contract Administrator, or the Contract Administrator has waived the requirement for a meeting.

D11. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- D11.1 If the Contractor fails to achieve the Work of the Contract in accordance with D2, the Contractor shall pay the City two hundred dollars (\$200.00) per Working Day for each and every Working Day following the day fixed herein until the Work is complete.
- D11.2 The amount specified for liquidated damages in D11.1 is based on a genuine pre-estimate of the City's damages in the event that the Contractor does not achieve the Work of the Contract.
- D11.3 The City may reduce any payment to the Contractor by the amount of any liquidated damages assessed.

D12. PRIME CONTRACTOR – THE WORKPLACE SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (MANITOBA)

D12.1 Further to C6.23, the Contractor shall be the Prime Contractor and shall serve as, and have the duties of the Prime Contractor in accordance with The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba).

D13. THE WORKPLACE SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (MANITOBA) – QUALIFICATIONS

D13.1 Further to B12.4, the Contractor/Subcontractor must, throughout the term of the Contract, have a Workplace Safety and Health Program meeting the requirements of The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba). At any time during the term of the Contract, the City may, at its sole discretion and acting reasonably, require updated proof of compliance, as set out in B12.4.

D14. SAFETY

- D14.1 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for safety at the Site and for compliance with all laws, rules, regulations and practices required by the applicable safety legislation.
- D14.2 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for securing the Site, and any existing facility thereon, and for the proper care and protection of the Work already performed.
- D14.3 The Contractor shall do whatever is necessary to ensure that:
 - (a) no person, property, right, easement or privilege is injured, damaged or infringed by reason of the Contractor's activities in performing the Work;
 - (b) the health and safety of all persons employed in the performance of the Work or otherwise is not endangered by the method or means of its performance;
 - (c) adequate medical services are available to all persons employed on the Work and at all times during the performance of the Work;
 - (d) adequate sanitation measures are taken and facilities provided with respect to the Work;
 - (e) pedestrian and other traffic on any public or private road or waterway is not unduly impeded, interrupted or endangered by the performance or existence of the Work or Plant;
 - (f) fire hazards in or about the Work are eliminated;

D15. SITE CLEANING

D15.1 The Contractor shall maintain the Site and the Work in a tidy condition and free from the accumulation of waste and debris, other than that caused by the City or by other contractors.

(a) As the Work progresses, the Contractor shall remove any Plant and Material not required for the performance of the remaining Work. He shall also remove waste and debris other than that caused by the City or other contractors, and leave the Site and the Work clean and suitable for occupancy by the City unless otherwise specified.

D16. INSPECTION

- D16.1 Before beginning or resuming operations upon any portion of the Work, the Contractor shall notify the Contract Administrator so as to enable him to arrange for inspection. If the Contractor fails to notify the Contract Administrator, the Contractor shall, if and when required by the Contract Administrator, forthwith take down or expose and redo that portion of the Work required to facilitate inspection. The cost of such taking down or exposure, and redoing, if any, shall be borne by the Contractor.
- D16.2 If and when required by the Contract Administrator, the Contractor shall take down or expose forthwith any portion of the Work where the Contract Administrator determines that the Work is not in accordance with the Contract. The cost of such taking down or exposure, and redoing, if any, shall fall upon the City if the taking down or exposure indicates that the portion exposed was properly performed, but if otherwise the cost shall be borne by the Contractor.

D17. ORDERS

D17.1 The Contractor shall provide a local Winnipeg telephone number or a toll-free telephone number at which orders for service may be placed.

D18. RECORDS

- D18.1 The Contractor shall keep detailed records of the services supplied under the Contract.
- D18.2 The Contractor shall record, as a minimum, for each item listed on Form B: Prices:
 - (a) user name(s) and addresses;
 - (b) order date(s);
 - (c) service date(s); and
 - (d) description and quantity of services provided.
- D18.3 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a copy of the records for each quarter year within fifteen (15) Calendar Days of a request of the Contract Administrator.

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

D19. INVOICES

D19.1 Further to C11, the Contractor shall submit an invoice for each portion of work performed delivered to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance - Accounts Payable 4th Floor, Administration Building, 510 Main Street Winnipeg MB R3B 1B9

Facsimile No.: 204 949-0864 Email: <u>CityWpgAP@winnipeg.ca</u>

- D19.2 Invoices must clearly indicate, as a minimum:
 - (a) the City's purchase order number;
 - (b) date of delivery;
 - (c) delivery address;

- (d) type and quantity of work performed;
- (e) the amount payable with GST and MRST shown as separate amounts; and
- (f) the Contractor's GST registration number.
- D19.3 The City will bear no responsibility for delays in approval of invoices which are improperly submitted.

D20. PAYMENT

- D20.1 Further to C11, payment shall be in Canadian funds net thirty (30) Calendar Days after receipt and approval of the Contractor's invoice.
 - (a) Payment for preventative maintenance shall be on a monthly basis. Payment will be made on receipt of invoice plus a completed monthly maintenance activity check off sheet.
 - (b) Payment for unscheduled repair work will be made on a monthly basis. Payment will be made on receipt of invoice for completed work based on labour rates and mark-ups quoted.
- D20.2 Further to C11, the City may at its option pay the Contractor by direct deposit to the Contractor's banking institution.

WARRANTY

D21. WARRANTY

- D21.1 Warranty is as stated in C12.
- D21.2 Any equipment installed under the contract as extra work or unscheduled repair shall be warranted for a minimum one (1) year period from the date of installation.

PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL

E1. APPLICABLE SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS

- E1.1 These Specifications shall apply to the Work.
- E1.2 The following are applicable to the Work:

Drawing Name/Title 1220 Pacific Avenue 2546 McPhillips Street 552 Plinguet Street 598 Plinguet Street 1539 Waverley Street 735 Assiniboine Park Drive 3 Grey Street

E1.3 Bidders are reminded that requests for approval of substitutes as an approved equal or an approved alternative shall be made in accordance with B7.

E2. SERVICES

- E2.1 The Work to be done under the Contract shall consist of maintenance of the diesel fuel and gasoline storage and dispensing systems located at the Winnipeg Fleet Management Agency various Fuelling Sites as listed D2.1 Scope of Work.
- E2.2 Work required in respect of recently installed equipment is described to some degree in the maintenance manuals which will be provided to the successful Contractor by the Contract Administrator.
- E2.2.1 Information on existing older dispensing nozzle and hose systems at 3 Grey Street and older diesel fuel filters are not included in the maintenance manuals.
- E2.3 The Contractor must be available on an on-call basis for repair of failed equipment.
- E2.3.1 Response time to be within 90 minutes.
- E2.4 Refer to the attached drawings for locations and schematics of the systems to be maintained.
- E2.5 The major equipment components to be maintained include the following:
 - (a) Ten (10) underground diesel fuel storage tanks;
 - (b) Ten (10) underground gasoline storage tanks;
 - (c) Twenty-Four (24) diesel fuel dispensing pumps;
 - (d) Twenty-Two (22) gasoline dispensing pumps;
 - (e) Twenty-Four (24) diesel fuel flow meters;
 - (f) Twenty-Four (24) diesel fuel filters;
 - (g) Twenty-Two (22) gasoline flow meters;
 - (h) Fuel piping systems, including shut off valves, check valves, motorized valves, pressure relief valves, fusible link valves, flexible connectors, strainers, fittings, etc.
 - (i) Air piping with filter-regulators, shut off valves and solenoid valves;
 - (j) Forty-Six (46) fuel dispensing nozzles with hoses, piping, valves and fittings;

- (k) Electrical power supplies and controls associated with the fuel handling systems,
- (I) Veeder-Root TLS-350 UTS Monitoring System
- (m) Profuel C6000 Computrol
- (n) Adjustment of equipment as required.
- E2.6 The Contractor shall prepare maintenance activity check off sheets for use during the course of the Contract.
- E2.6.1 The sheet shall indicate all maintenance activities required under the Contract and indicate the frequency of each.
- E2.6.2 The sheet shall have space for inserting the date each activity is completed along with the initials of the individual completing the Work.
- E2.6.3 Check off sheets shall be submitted to the Contract Administrator for approval prior to use.
- E2.6.4 Sheets shall be to the satisfaction of the Contract Administrator.
- E2.6.5 Provide separate check off slots for each of the diesel and regular gasoline fuel tanks.
- E2.6.6 Provide separate check off sheet packages for each of the seven (7) Fuelling Sites as listed under Scope of Work D2.1.
- E2.7 The Contractor shall supply and pay for all required lubricants of the type indicated in the maintenance manuals
- E2.7.1 The Contractor shall supply all other maintenance materials required which shall be paid for by the City on submission of proper invoices.
- E2.8 Upon Contract Administrator's approval, the Contractor shall carry out repair of equipment and system breakdowns.
- E2.8.1 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a quotation for the required work for approval prior to commencing the work.
- E2.8.2 The Contractor shall provide all required materials (if not stocked by the City) and labour.
- E2.8.3 Repair of breakdowns shall be paid by the City as extra work.
- E2.8.4 Labour rates and mark-ups will be as per the unit costs quoted in Form "B: PRICES".
- E2.9 Repairs and maintenance work must be carried out in an expedient manner.
- E2.10 Check with operating personnel during weekly site visits to determine any repair or adjustment requirements.

E2.11 Preventative maintenance work shall include but not be limited to the activities listed on the following table:

ltem No		Equipment Description and Maintenance Involved	Week	Month	6 Month	Year
1.		ground Fuel Tanks – External Release Detection, Ground Water and ur Monitoring Wells				
	a)	Monitor Well Probe – Checking the integrity of wires and connections.		Х		
	-	Spill Protection/Containment – Check containment integrity for cracks or rust especially around the interior seams and around fill pipes.		х		
2.	DISPE	INSER ASSEMBLY AND COMPONENTS				
	a)	Stage 2 Vapour Recovery Breakaway Valve - <i>Check for leaks at connections.</i>		х		
	b)	Dispenser Nozzles Hoses – <i>Check hoses for cracks and leaks. Check nozzles for proper operation and shut-off.</i>		х		
	c)	Vacuum/Suction Pumps – Listen to ensure both pumps are working.		Х		
	d)	Fuel Filter – Each fuel line has a filter, check filter connection and condition. Change if necessary.		х		
	e)	Dispenser Piping Sump Secondary Containment – Check for cracks and for excessive amount of liquid in containment. Liquid must be pumped out and safely disposed of.				
	f)	Check to ensure protection barriers are securely mounted at delivery refueling ports.		x		
3.	FILL A	AREA ASSEMBLY				
	a)	Overfill Devices – Check to ensure not disabled.		Х		
	b)	Fill Containment or Spill Bucket – Check for liquid accumulation and interior seam integrity. Remove liquid and safely dispose.		x		

4.	PUMP AND TANK SUMP INSPECTION	Week	Month	6 Month	Year
	a) Removal of Sump Pump Access covers to access the Sump Pump.			х	
	b) Check sump containment for cracks or holes.			х	
	c) Remove liquid from sumps – Document and log all liquid removed. Environmental Disposal of all liquid.			х	
	d) Open and inspect 5 gallon tank fill collection box - Remove and dispose of any accumulated liquid.			х	
	e) Fuel Sump Pump Assembly – Check all connections for sweating or leaks.			х	
	 f) Flex Connectors; Flexpipe, Semi-rigid and Rigid Pipe – check connections for cracks, leaks, materials degradation, ballooning, etc. 			х	
5.	PUMP CALIBRATIONS AND INSPECTIONS			Х	
6.	EMERGENCY SHUT DOWN SYSTEM – Check to ensure system and audible warning signal are working.			х	
7.	VEEDER-ROOT TLS – 350 UST Monitoring System - Check for proper operation.				х
8.	Profuel C6000 Computrol – Check for proper operation.				х
9.	INSPECTION AND PERFORMANCE TESTING – Article 8.4.1(1) CCME Code of Practice				
	Spill Protection Containment – Hydro Test for Integrity				х

E2.12 Completed check off sheets for all Fuel Sites shall be submitted to the Fuel and Rentals Administrator

E3. EXISTING SERVICES

- E3.1 Notify the Contract Administrator of intended interruption of services and obtain required permission.
- E3.2 Where works involves breaking into or connecting to existing services, give Contract Administrator 48 hours' notice for necessary interruption of mechanical or electrical service throughout course of work.
- E3.2.1 Minimize duration of interruptions.
- E3.2.2 Carry out work at times as directed by the Contract Administrator with minimum disturbance to operations.
- E3.2.3 Adhere to approved schedule and provide notice to affected parties.

- E3.3 Provide temporary services when directed by the Contract Administrator to maintain critical building and tenant systems.
- E3.4 Provide barricades in work areas, as required, to ensure safety of building occupants during work activities under this Contract.
- E3.5 Accept liability for damage to the City's property occurring as a result of activities under this Contract.

E4. CONTRACT METHOD

- E4.1 Carry out maintenance contract under stipulated price contract.
- E4.2 Supply of indicated materials for maintenance and materials and labour for extra work activities such as unplanned repairs will be paid by the City based on approved quotations based on quoted labour rates and mark-up rates.

E5. WORK BY OTHERS

- E5.1 Snow clearing at fuelling sites and at tank locations.
- E5.2 Ordering, fuel supply and filling of fuel tanks.
- E5.3 General housekeeping, other than clean-up of areas required due to maintenance work carried out under this Contract.

E6. WORK SEQUENCE

- E6.1 Coordinate maintenance schedule and coordinate with Contract Administrator occupancy during maintenance work.
- E6.2 Maintenance tasks shall be carried out at time intervals recommended by equipment manufacturer and as further indicated in the maintenance manual and the maintenance activity table attached to this section.
- E6.3 Maintain fire access/control.

E7. CONTRACTOR USE OF PREMISES

- E7.1 Contractor shall limit his use of premises to allow for City occupancy and the City's normal operation activities.
- E7.2 Coordinate use of the premises with the Contract Administrator or the Contract Administrator's representative.
- E7.3 Obtain and pay for use of additional storage or work areas if needed for operations under this Contract.

E8. CITY OCCUPANCY

- E8.1 City will occupy premises during entire period of the maintenance Contract for execution of normal operations.
- E8.2 Cooperate with City in scheduling operations to minimize conflict and to facilitate City usage.
- E8.2.1 Any maintenance work that will require shut down of fuelling systems will have to be scheduled at alternate times so as not to disrupt fuelling operations.

E9. DOCUMENTS REQUIRED

- E9.1 Maintain at job site or the Contractor's office, one copy of each document as follows:
 - (a) Complete set of as-built drawings;
 - (b) Operating and Maintenance Manuals;
 - (c) Activity Completion Check Off Sheets;
 - (d) Health and Safety Plan and Other Safety Related Documents;
 - (e) Other documents as specified